INDIA

SINGH CHHABRA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO,
THE MEMBERS OF CITHABRA HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited (he accompanying financial statements of CHHABRA HEALTHCARE
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31/03/2025. the
Statement of Profit and Loss. the cash flow statement for the vear then ended. and a summary of the
significant accounting policies und other explanatory information.

Auditor’s Opinion

I our opinion and 1o the best of our information and aceording o the explanations given 1o us. the
aloresaid lnancial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
zive atroe and fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting Standards preseribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015, as amended. ("Ind
AS") other accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as
at J1/05/2025, and its Loss and it's cash Mows (or the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specilied under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are
independent ol the Company in accordance with the Code of Lthics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants ol India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 and the Rules there under. and we have
fulliled cur ather ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Lihics,
We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for
QU opinion,

Informution Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thercon

Lhe Company “s Board ol Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's
Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance
and Sharcholder’s Information. but does not include the standalone financial statements and ouy
auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion an e standalone lTnancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express amy form of assurance conclusion thereon.

I conneetion with our audit of the standalone financial statements. our responsibility is to read the
other informiation and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
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with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

When we read such other information as and when made available to us and if we conclude that there
is a material misstatement therein. we are required to communicate the matter 1o those charged with
governance. We have nothing o report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance (TCWGQG)

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act. 2013 (the Act™) with respeet 1o the preparation of these linancial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position . linancial performance and cash flows of he Company in
accordance with the accounting principles gencrally aceepted in India. including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design. implementation and maintenance
ol adequate internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the [inancial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud
OF CrTor,

I preparing the linancial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company s ability
lo continue asa going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis ol aceounting unless management cither intends to liguidate the Company ar lo
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative bul to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’'s financial FepOIng process.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the linancial statements as a whole are
lree from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue dn auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected w influence the economic decisions ol users taken on the
basis of these [nancial statements,

As part ol an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldemtily and assess the risks of material misstiement of the financial statements. whether due 1o frad
or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and abtain audit evidenee
that is sutticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk ol not detecting a
material misstatement resulting [rom fraud is higher than for one resulting [rom error. as fraud may
involve collusion, lorgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

e Obtain @n understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143¢3)(i) of the Companies Acl. 2013, we
are also respongible (e expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls sysient in place and the operating efTectiveness of such controls,




e Lvaluaie the appropriateness ol accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managenent.

= Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concern basis ol accounting and.
based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cas significant doubt on the Company s ability to continue as a going concern,
[T'we conclude that a matenial uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financiai statemems or, if such disclosures are inadequate. 10
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However. future evenis or conditions may cause the Company 10 cease fo continue
A5 A 20Imne concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content ol the financial statements. including the
disclosures, and whether the fnancial stwiements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achicves Fair presentation.

We communicale with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. the planned
scope and timing ol the audit and significant audit [indings, including any significant deficiencies in
nlernal control that we identily during our audii.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought o bear on our independence, and where applicable. related
saleguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those maticrs (hat
were o most signilicance in the audit of the standalone linancial statements ol the current period and
are therefore the key audit maters. We deseribe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare eircumstances. we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected 1o outweigh the public interest benelits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act. we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary [or the purposes ol our audit.

(b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
[ s it appears [rom our examination ol those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Prolit and Loss. and the cash flow statement deall with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(dy In our opinjon. the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Seetion 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 201,

(e} On the basis of the writlen representations received rom the directors as on 31/03/2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as 38/03/2925 from
beingappointed as a divector in terms ol Section 164 (2§ of the Act.

(1) With respect 1o the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over linancial reporting of the
Company and the operating elfectiveness ol such controls. refer to our separate report in
"Anvexure A"




(2) With respect to the other matters 10 be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
I'1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 1o the best of our
information and according 1o the explanations SIVeN 1o us:

I The Company does not have anv pending litigations which would impact its financial
rlﬂ.\“ﬂlﬂl'l.

. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts [or
wihich there were any material foresceable Josses.

i, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Tnvestor Lducation
and Protection Fund by the Company.

v, (a) The management has represented that, 1o the best of it's knowledge and belicf. other
than as disclosed in the notes 1o the aceounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that
the Intermediary shall. whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneliciaries™) or provide any puarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneliciaries.

(b) The muanagement has represented, that. (o the best of it's kiow ledee and beliet. othe
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Partics™), with the
understanding. whether recorded in w riting or otherwise, that the company shall, whetlier,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneliciaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

(¢) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances., nothing has come to their notice that has caused them 1o believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement,

V. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vio Based on our examination, which included test checks. the company has used an accounting
software Jor maintaining of'its books ol account which has a feature of recording audit rail (cdit
log) facility in terms ol the Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 and
and the same has operated throughout the vear for all relevant transactions recorded in (he
software. Fuither during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tempered with.

Vil As required by the Companies (Auditors” Report) Order.2020("the Order™) issued by the
Central Government of ndia in wermis of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act. 2015, We give in the Annexure “B™ statements on the matters specified in paracraphs
3 and 4 ol the order. to the extent appiicable.

FOR SINGH CIHHHABRA & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :0012127C

Date:; 24% Nlay, 2023
Place : DELIN HARISH KUMAR CHHAB
Partner
M.No. : 500104
UDIN : 25500104BMILXBG3213



“Annexure A7 (o the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial
Statements of CHHABRA HEALTHCARE SQUITIONS PRIVATE LIMITED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls nnder Clause (i) of Sub=section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

We have audited the internal financial controls over linancial reporting of CHEIABRA HEAL THCARI
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED as of Mareh 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone linancial statements of the Company ior the vear ended on that date.

Managemeni's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

he Company 's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
(he essential components ol internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finaneial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Irndia. These
responsibilitics include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating elfectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business.
including adherence to company’s policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and crrors, the accuracy and completencss of the accounting records. and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal Nnancial controls over lnaneial
reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Iinancial Controls Over Finaneial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standaids on
Auditing. issued by ICAT and deemed to be preseribed under section 143(10) of the Companies At
2013, 1o the extent applicable to an audit of internal tinancial conrols. both applicable o an audit ol
Internal Financial Controls and. both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls over
{inancial reporting was established and maintained and i’ such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audil evidence amount the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating efTectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
operating efTectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
upon on the auditor's judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to Traud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit apinion on the Company’s internal financial controls svstem over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting,

A company's internal financial contral over lnancial reporting is a process designed 1o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the relfability of financial reporting and the preparation of [inancial
stafemuents [or external purposes in accordance with generally aceepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable détail. accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions ol the assets ol the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
fransactions are recorded s necessary 1o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
eenerally aceepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company: and (3)




provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition. use,
or disposition ol the company's assets that could have 2 material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intermal financial controls over linancial reporting. including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. material misstatements duce Lo
error or [raud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over (inancial reporting to future periods ave subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over linancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree ol
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

[ our opinion. the Company has. in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over linancial reporting and such internal financial controls over lnancial reporling were aperating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal contral stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of [nternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issues by the nsiitute
ol Chartered Accountants ol India,

FORSINGH CHHABRA & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :0012127C

Prane + 24™ Mas, 125 TIARISH KUMAR CHHABRA
Mlace - DELIT Partner
ALNo. : 300104
LN 2 255001 04BMLXBG32 13




ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CHHABRA HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS
PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCII 31,2025

| Referred to in paragraph 1 under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” in the Independent
Auditors™ Report |
4
(@) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of Property. Plant and Equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Al the Property. Plant and Lquipment were physically verified by the management in the previous vear
in accordance with a planned programme of veri {ving them once in three years which. in our opinion. is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(€) According 1o the information and explanations given to us. there are no immovable properties, and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(¢) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(<) According to the information and explanations given (o us. e Company has not revalued its property.
plant and Fquipment (including Right of Use assets) and ils intangible assets. Accordingly. the
requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.,

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us. no proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act.
1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly. the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (¢) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has a system of physical verification of inventory whereby all items ol inventory are
physically verified over a period of time. Diserepancies. il any between physical stock and book
records are adjusted in the books as and when the verifications and corresponding reconciliations
are carried out. In our opinion. the frequency of verification. coverage & procedure of such
verification is reasonable and appropriate. Discrepancies noted on perpetual physical verification
carried out during the year were not material and have been adjusted in books ol accounts.

(b} The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits of Rs. 10 crores in agoregate [rom
Banks/financial institutions on the basis of security ol current assets. Quarterly returns / statements
are filed with such Banks/ financial institutions which are not in agreement with the books of

account. The details of the same are as below:
(Amount in millions)

[ & L0k il Amount as | Amount as
; per books | reported in the Reason for
Quarter N“HIL‘IU‘ | Particulars | ofaccount | quarterly Difference | material
Bk return/ diserepancies
L | statement i o
Inventory S804 5804 - | Reclassification
[ 30 Indusind | Creditors 17.13 2747 (10.35) | & quarter end
June Bank | elosing
2024 Debtors 125.76 132 08 (6.32) | adiustments.




iii.

R

vl

(a)

(b)

Amotnt Amount as
T as pur reported in Reason for
Quarter Bl Particulars | books of | the quarterly | Difference | material
account return/ discrepancics
I — T e . statement | I BN
Inventory | 7497 | ?-ELSJ_Z_4 Y - | Reclassificat
A | Indusind | Creditors 35.88 44.86 (8.98) | ™" & Halt
30 September = S TR e———— ~ 1 year-end
2024 Bank Haiin
M Debtors . closing
" 154.71 . ;
3 LY . e i 5 121 ] (13.17) | adjustments.
Inventory 7188 | 71.88 - | Reclassificati
30 December Indusnd | Creditors o 43m| 4267 __1.07 | on & quarter-
5024 Bank | end  closing
= _D‘- btors - 157.66 154.40 3.26 | adjustments.
Inventory 60.94 58.75 219 | Reclassificati
31 March Indusll_m Creditors 4732 55.90 (8.68) | on & year-
2035 Bank end  closing
N Debtors ; - aclistusonte
i 157.68 161.63_ (3{)2) adjustments.

According (o the information explanation provided to us. the Company has not made any investments
in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans. secured
or unsecured. to companies. firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Ilence. the
requirements under paragraph 3(iii) ol the Order are not applicable to the Company.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has no
cither direetly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom the
dircetor is interested. in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and the Company has
not made investments through more than two layers of investiment companies in accordance with the
provisions ol section 186 of the Act. Accordingly. provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions ol sections
73. 74 75 and 76 of the Act, the rules framed thereunder and the Circulars, notifications issued [rom
time to time with regard to the deposits aceepted, is not applicable to the company. No order has been
passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Réserve Bank of India or
any Court or any other Tribunal in this respect.

Since the Company has not commenced commercial production. in our opinion. the provisions of clause
3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us. in our opinion. undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax. provident fund.
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax. service tax, duty of customs. duty of excise. value
added tax. cess have been regularly deposited by the Company with appropriate authorities in all cases
during the year.

According 1o the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined

by us. there are no ducs of income tax. goods and service tax. customs duty, cess and any other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.




vili.

(I

(a)

(b

—

(i)

(b

)

(h)

(e

According 1o the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not
accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in Tax Assessment ol the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has been
now recorded in the books of account. Hence. the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

[n our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures. we
report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government orany government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us. money raised by way of
term loans during the year have been applied for the purpose [or which they were raised.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us. and the procedures performed by us, and on
an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company. we report that no funds
ratsed on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the standalone
linancial statements of the Company. we report that the Company has not taken any funds from iy
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations ol its subsidiaries. associates or joint ventures.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us. we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of sceurities held in its seeurities,
Joint ventures or associate companies.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year, Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) ol the Order
are not applicable 1o the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully. partly or optionally convertible debentures during the vear. Accordingly, the provisions stated
in paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable 10 the Company.

During the course of our audit. examination of the books and records of the Company. earried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India. and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company
nor on the Company.,

We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company during
the course of audit of the standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025, accordingly
the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As represented 10 us by (he management. there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the course of audit. Accordingly. the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(c) of the Order
is not applicable to Company.




XI1.

AL

M.

XVa

VL

(a)

(h)

(d)

AViLL

vl

NIN.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly. the provisions staed in paragraph 3(xii) (a) 1o (¢) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company,

According 10 the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination ol the records
ol the Company. transactions with the related partics are in compliance with seetions 177 and 188 of the
Act. where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not require to comply with provision
ol section 138 of the Act. Hence. the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xiv) (a) to (b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us. in our opinion during the vear the Company
has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and
henee, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to Company. Accordingly. the provisions
stated in paragraph 3{xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

[n our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 1A of the Reserve Bank
ol India Act. 1934 and accordingly. the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

[ our opinion. the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India. Hence. the reporting
under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(b) ol the Order are not applicable to the Company

I'he Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Tence. the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company does not have any CIC as part of its group. Henee the provisions stated in paragraph
clause 3 xvi (d) ol the order are not applicable to the Company

According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has incurred cash losses in the
current financial year and in the immediately preceding Fnancial year. The details of the same arc as
ollows:
e _ (Amount in millions)
J Particulars 31 March 2023 317 Mareh 2024

‘ Cash Losses (2RFT) ' (23.29)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, Hence. the provisions stated in
paragraph clause 3 (aviii) ol the Order are not applicable o the Company.

According to the mformation and explanations given 1o us and based on our examination ol financial
ratios, ageing and expected date of realisation ol financial assets and payment ol liabilities, other
information accompanying the standalone linancial statements. our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans, we are ol the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of audit report and the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one vear from the balance sheet dare.




NN According to the information and explanations given to us. the provisions of section 135

of the Act are

not applicable to the Company. Hence, the provisions of paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order are not

applicable 1o the Company.

XXI.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial

statements. Accordingly. no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in the report.

Date : 24" May.2025
Place : DELLII

FOR SINGH CHHABRA & C0).
(Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :0012127C

ITARISH KUMAR CHITABR
Partner

M.No. : 500104

UDIN : 25500104BM1LXBG3213



SINGH CHHABRA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO,
THE MEMBERS OF CHHABRA HEALTIICARE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements

We have awdited the accompanying linancial statements of CHHABRA HEALTHCARE
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31/03/2025. the
Statement of Prolit and Loss. the cash flow statement [or the year then ended, and a summary of the
signifteant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Auditor’s Gpinion

In our opinion and ta the best ol our information and according to the explanations given to us. the
aloresaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the [ndian accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 olthe Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013, as amended. ("Ind
AS"} other accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of afTairs of the Company as
al 21/03/2025. and its Loss and it's cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducied our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specilicd under section
143(10) ol the Companics Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are Iurther deseribed
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the [nstitue of Chartered
Accountants ol India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the linancial
statements inder the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled vur ather ethical responsibilities in accordanee with these requirements and the Code ol Ethies,
We believe thiat the audit evidence we have oblained is suflicient and appropriaie o provide a busis lor
our opinion,

informuiton Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auvditor's Report Fherean

Fhe Compann s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of'the other information. The ather
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis. Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance
and Sharchaolder’s Information. bul does nol include the standalone linancial stalements and our
anditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standajone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any furn ol assurance conclusion therean.

Inconnection with our audit of the standalone financial statements. our responsibility Is 1o read the
other information and. in doing su. consider whether the other information is materfally inconsisient

Delhi Office: 305, V4 Tower, Plot No. 14, Karkardooma Community Centre, Delhi-110092 Tel.: +91 {11) 43432550
Dehradun Office: 1, Turner Road, Clement Town, Dehradun-248002
Email: mail@scco.co.in Website: www.singhchhabra.com



with the standalone financial statements or vur knuwledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information as and when made available to us and il we conclude that there
15 a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matler to thase charged with
governance. We have nothing (o repaort in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance (TCWQG)

The Company™s Board of Directars is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act™) with respect (o the preparation of these Tnancial statements that give
atrue and fair view ol the [inancial position . financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepled in India, including the Accounting
Standards specificd under Scetion 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules.
2014 This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions ol the Act Jor saleguarding of the assets of the Company and lor preventing and detecting
[rauds and other irregularitics: selection and appiication of appropriale accounting policies: making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design. implementation and maintenance
ol adequale internal financial controls. that were operating effectively lor ensuring the accuracy and
completeness ol the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ol the [Tnancial
statements that give a true and fair view and are [ree [rom material misstatement. whether due to Gaud
OF CrTor,

[n preparing the linancial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company s ability
1o continue as a going concern. diselosing. as applicable. matiers refated to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 10
ceise operations. or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

I'he Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Aunditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finuncial statements as a whole are
free [rom material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue dn auditors report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee thal an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always deteet a material misstatement when it exisis.
Misstatements can arise [fom fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis ol these linancial statements.

As part ol an audil in accordance with $As. we exercise professional judgement and maintain
prolessional skepticism throwghout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks ol material misstatement of the fnacial statements. whether due 1o fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks. and oblain audit evidence
that is sullicient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may
involve collusion, torgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding ol internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under scetion 143(3)(1) ol the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible 1or expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial conirols svstem in place and the operating elTectiveness ol such controls.




e Lvaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness o accounting
estimates wd reflated disclosures made by navagement.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and.
based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast signiticant doubt an the Company”s ability to continue as a going concern.,
[Fwe conelude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor™s
report Lo the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate. o
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on (he audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our
auditor’s report, However, futire events or conditions may cause the Company to cease (o continue
18 & gOing coneem.

e livaluate the overall presentation. structure and conlent of the [inancial statements. including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with goversanee regarding. among other matters. the planned
scope and liming of the audit and signiticant audit findings. including any significant deliciencics in
internal control that we identily during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and o communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable. related
saleguards.

Front the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were o most signiflicance in the audit of the standalone linancial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matiers in owr auditor’s report unless law or
regulation prectudes public disclosure about the matter ar when. in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonaliy be capected to outweigh the public interest benelits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Seetion 143 {3) ol the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obiained ali the information and explanations which to the best ol our
knowledge and beliel were necessary Tor the purposes of our audit.

(b} In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination ol those hooks.

(¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and L.oss. and the cash flow statement deall with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account,

() In our opinion. the aforesaid financial staiements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2011,

(e} Onthe basis of the written representations received from the direetors as on 31/03/2025 (aken
o recard by the Boeard of Directors, none of the divectors is disqualilied as 31/03/2023 from
heing appointed as a director in terms ol Section 164 (2) ol the Act,

(N With respeet 1o the adequaey of the intermal tinnacial controls over financial reporting of the
Compuny and the operating etfectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate repart in
"Aunnexure A"




(2) Withrespeet to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
I ol'the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position,

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts Tor
which there were any material foresceable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection 1‘und by the Company.,

v, (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief. other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loancd or
invested (either from borrowed lunds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
Tunds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ics). including loreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that
the Intermediary shall. whether. direetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsaever by or on behalf of the campany (“Ultimate
Reneliciaries™) or provide any guarantee, seeurity or the like on behall of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries,

() The management has represented. that. o the best of it"s knowledge and beliel. other
than as disclosed in the notes t the accounts. no funds have been received by the compam
from any person(s) or entity(ies). including forcign entities (“FFunding Parties™), with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the company shall. whether,
directly ar indirectly. lend or invest in other persons or entitics identilied in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf ol the Funding Party (~Ultimate Beneliciaries™) or provide any
guarantec. security or the tike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics: and

{¢) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances. nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that (he
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i} contain any material mis-statement.

v, The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the vear.

i Based on our examination. which included test cheeks. the company has used an accounting
soltware for maintaining ofits books ol'account which has a leature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility in terms of the Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
and the same has operated throughout the vear for all refevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tempered with,

vii. As required by the Companies (Auditors” Report) Order. 20200 the Order™) issued by the
Central Government of India in lermis of sub section (11} of section 143 of the Companies
Acl 2013, We give inthe Annexure “B" statements on the matters specified in paragraphs
Jand 4 of'the order. to the extent applicable.

FOR SINGH CHIIABRA & CO.
(Charterced Accountants)
Reg Neo. :0012127C

Date : 249 May 2023
Place : DELIL HHARISH KUMAR'CHIIABI
Partner
M.No. : 500104
UDIN : 25500104 BMILXBG3I2 13



*Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial
Statements of CHHABRA HEALTHCARE SQLETTONS PRIVATE LIMITED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls nnder Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

We have audited the internal financial controls over firnciai reporting of CHHABRA HEALTTICARE
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED as of Marelt 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internat ¥innncial Controls

The Company *s maragenent is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial confroks
based on the internal control over financial reporting eriteria established by the Company considering
the essentinl components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
respansibilitics include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating efTectively lor ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business.
including adherence to company’s policies. the saleguarding of its assets, the prevention and deteetion
of frauds and crrors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely
preparation ol reltable financial information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit, We conducted our sudit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Intermal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing. issued by 1CALand deemed 1o be preseribed under seetion 14301)) ol the Companies Act,
2013, 1o the extent applicable to an audit of internal {inancial controls. both applicable 10 an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and. both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
Fnancial reporting was established and maintained and it such controls operated effectively in all
material respects,

Our audit involves perlorming procedures to obtain audit evidence amount the adequacy ol the internai
linancial control system over [tnaneial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and
operating efTectiveness ol internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
upon on the awditor's judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
linaneial statements, whether due to (raud or error.

We betieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis {or
our audit opinion on the Company 's interatal linancial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A compay's internal financial control over linancial reporting is a process designed (o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability ol fnancial reporting and the preparation of {inancial
statements Tor external purposes in accordance with generally aceepted accounting principles. A
contpainy's internal financial control over [nancial reportimg incldes those policies and procedures thin
{1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary {0 permit preparation of tinancial statements in accordance with
generally aceepled accounting principles, and tha receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of wanagement and directors of the company: and (3)




provide reasonable assurance reparding prevention or timely detection of unautharized acquisition, use.
or disposition of the company's assets that eoukl have o material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Lintitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tinancial controls over financial reporting. including the
possibility of collusion or improper management vverride of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fiaud may occur and not be defected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over (inancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial conirol
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of
compliance wilh the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion. the Company has. in all material respects. an adequate internal financial controls system
over linancial reporting and such internal linancial controls over [inancial reporting were aperating
clfectively us at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the esseniial components ol iniernal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issues by the Institute
ol Chartered Accountants ol India.

FOR STNGUH CIHTABRA & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :0012127C

Date 3 24% My 2023 TTARISH KUMAR CHHIABRA

Place : DLLLIN Partner
ML.No. : 500104

UDIN : 25500 UH4BRMLNBGI2T3




ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CHHABRA HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS
PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

[Rcl‘.crred Lo in paragraph | under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” in the Independent
Auditors™ Report|

i

{a)

(b}

(c)

(«h

(c)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B. The Company has maimained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

All the Property. Plant and Equipment were physically verilied by the management in the previous vear
in accordance with a planned programme of verilying them once in three years which. in our opinion. is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
diserepancics were noticed on such verilication.

According to the information and explanations given to us. there are no immovable propertics. and
accardingly. the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable o the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its property.,
plant and Equipment (including Right of” Use assets) and its intangible asscts. Accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us. no proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act.
1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly. the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (¢) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has a system of physical verification ol inventory whereby all ftems ol inventory are
physically verificd over a period of time. Discrepancies, if any between physical stock and book
records are adjusted in the books as and when the verifications and corresponding reconciliations
are carried oul. In our opinion, the [requency of verilication, coverage & procedure of such
verification is reasonable and appropriate. Discrepancics noted on perpetual physical verification
carried out during the year were not material and have been adjusted in books of accounts.

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits of Rs. 10 crores in aggregate from
Banks/linancial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly returns / statements
arc filed with such Banks/ [inancial instilutions which are not in agrecement with the books of
account. The details of the same are as below:

(b)

(Amount in millions)

Amount as Amount as
ame of per books | reported in the Reason for
Quarter Ni;m('t,o Particulars | of account quarterly Dilference | material
ank return/ discrepancics
e ] L Statement L
Inventory S8 530_4 - Reclassification
3 Indusind | Creditors 1742 27.47 (10.35) | & quarter end
June Bank T I | closing
2024 Debtors 125.76 1372.08 (6.32) | adjustments.




jil.

V.

vi

vii.

(a}

{1

] Amount Amount ag

Name of as pr reported in Reason lor
Quarter Bank Particulars | books of | the quarterly | Dilference | material
account refurn/ discrepancies
S L L statement I o
nventory L 7497 74.97 - | Reclassilicati
. Indusind | Creditors ]~ 35,88 44.86 (8.98) | " & Ilalf
30 September — i == yvear-end
9 Bank S
2024 Debtors closing
s 154.71 . I
D e ML T (13017) | adjustments.
| Inventory | 71.88 71.88 - | Reclassificati
30 December IndusI!]d Creditars 4374|4267 107 |on & quarter-
2074 Bank Bebtor end  elosing
B ehlors 157.66 154.40 3.26 | adjustments.
Inventory 60.94 28.75 2.19 | Reclassificati
31 Mareh Induslnd | Creditors 47,22 55.90 (8.68) | on & year-
2025 Bank end closing
L= Debtors - adiustments
- L 157.68 161.65 (3.97) | adjustments.

According to the information explanation provided to us. the Company has not made any investments
in. provided any guarantee or sceurity or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans. sceured
or unsceured. 10 companies, firms. Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. !lence. the
requirements under paragraph 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
cither direetiy or indirectly. granted any loan to any ol its dircetors or to any other person in whom the
dircctor is interested. in accordance with the provisions ol section 185 of the Act and the Company has
not made investments through more than two lavers of investment companies in accordance with the
provisions ol section 186 of the Act. Accordingly. provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are
nol applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions ol'sections
73.74.75 and 76 of the Act, the rules lramed thereunder and the Circulars, notifications issued rom
tme lo time with regard to the deposits accepted. is not applicable to the company. No order has been
passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or
any Courl ar any other Tribunal in this respeet.

Since the Company has not commenced commercial production, in our apinion. the provisions of clause
A{vi) of the Order are not applicable {0 the Company

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us. in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident fund,
employees' stale insurance, income-lax. sales-lax. service tax. duty ol customs, duly of excise, value
added tax. cess have been regularly deposited by the Company with appropriate authorities in all cases
during the year.

According (o the information and explanation given {o us and the records of the Company examined

by us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and any other statutory
dues whieh have not been deposited on account of any dispute.




viil.

{a)

{h

—

(N

N.

(a)

{b)

A,

{a)

(b

According to the information and explanations given to us. there are no transactions which are not
accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has been
now recorded in the books of account. Hence. the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon (o any lender,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the Company has not been declared willlul defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

In our opinion and accarding 1o the information explanation provided (o us, money raised by way of
term loans during the year have been applicd for the purpose for which they were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us. and the procedures performed by us. and on
an overall examination of the standalone linancial statements of the Company, we report that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the standalone
[inancial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any lunds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or Jjoint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its securitics.

Joint ventures or associate companies,

The Company did not raise any maney by way o initial public ofTer or further public offer {including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly. the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)a) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
ol the Company. the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully. partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly. the provisions stated
in paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable 10 the Company.

During the course of our audit. examination of the books and records of the Company. carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India. and according to the information and
explanations given (o us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company
nor on the Company.

We have not come across ol any instance ol material [raud by the Company or on the Company during
the course of audit of the standalone financial staiement for the year ended March 31. 2025, accordingly
the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(h) ol the Order is not applicable to the Company.,

As represented Lo us by the management. there are no whistle-biower complaints reccived by the
Company during the course of audit. Accordingly. the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)e) of the Order
is not applicable to Company.
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NIl

Xiv.
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(a)

(b)

{<d)

vl

Xviii.

XN,

In our upinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) 10 (¢) of the Qrder are not
applicable to the Company.

According 1o the information and explanations piven to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company. (ransactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act. where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financiai
statements as required by the applicable aceounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not require to comply with provision
ol section 138 of'the Act. [lence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3{(xiv) (a) to (b) of the Order arc not
applicable (o the Company.

According to the information and explanations given (o us, in our opinion during the year the Company
has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and
henee. provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to Company. Accordingly. the provisions
stated i paragraph 3(xv} of the Order are not applicable 1o the Company,

In our opinion. the Company is not required to be registered under seetion -5 1A ol the Reserve Bank
of India Act. 1934 and accordingly. the provisions siated in paragraph clause 3 (xviXa) of the Order are
not applicable {o the Company.

In our opinion. the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without any valid Certificate of Registration [rom Reserve Bank of [ndia. I lence. the reporting
under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Hence. the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Campany.

The Company does not have any CIC as part of its group. Hence the provisions stated in paragraph
clause 3 xvi (d) of the order are not applicable 10 the Company

According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has incurred cash losses in the
current [nancial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. The details of the same are as

follows:
o S o {Amount in millions)
Yarticulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash Losses N G 42 S (2329

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Henee, the provisions stated in
paragraph clause 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicablie to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of [inancial
ratios, ageing and expected date of realisation of financial assets and payment of liabilities. other
information accompanying the standalone linancial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans. we are of the opinion that no material uncerlainty exists as on the
date ol audit report and the Company is capable of meeting its liabilitics existing at the date ol balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of ane year from the balance sheet date.
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According to the information and explanations given (o us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company. Hencee, the provisions of paragraph (xx)}a) to (b) of the Order are not

applicable 1o the Company.

‘The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone [inancial
statements. Accordingly. no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in the report.

Date : 24" May.2025
Place : DELIT

FOR SINGH CHHABRA & CO.
(Charterced Accountants)
Reg No. :0012127C

HARISH KUMAR CHIHAB
Partner
M.No. : 500104
UDIN : 25500104BMLXBG3213



Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
{Amount In Millions, unless otherwlse stated)

Particulars

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assat
Goodwilll
financial assets

Other financial assets.
Deferred tox Assets [net)
Non current tax assets [net)
Total non-currant assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financtal assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent
Other financiz] assets
Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND UIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

Liabllitles
Non-current labilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabllities
Provisions
Total non-current liabllities

Current [fabllitles
Financial llablilties
Borrowlngs -
Lease liabllities
Trade payables
i} total outstanding dues of mlcro enterprises and small enterprises
i1} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small
enterprises
Other financial liabliives
Other current lfabllitles
Provisions
Current tax liabilitles (net)
Total current liabilitles
Total liabllities

Total equity and liabilities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Singh Chhabra & Co,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No,: 012127C

Harish K, Chhatira
Partner
Membership No: 500104
Place: Delhl

Date: 24 May 2025

Asat Asat

Not .

) ote No, . 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
5(A) 1.10 070
5(B) 6.19 8.59

6 12,23 -
7 0.02 0.02
8 - -
El - 0.10
18,54 9.41
10 60,94 62.86
1l 142.87 106,14
12 3.06 0.25
13 18,00 18.00
7 4.54 .22
14 0.81 5.09
230.22 192.56
248,76 201.97
15 010 0.10
16 [76.79) {51.34)
{76.69) (51.24)
17 160,00 -
18 6.63 10.07
19 142 1,10
168.05 11,17
17 68.50 203.83
18 3.44 2.93
20
3.44 0.58
43,78 9.75
21 38.80 20,58
21 2,15 4,15
L) 0.23 0.22
. 0.06 -
158.40 242,04
326.45 253,21
249,76 201,97
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ash Sharma
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Date: 24 May 2025

Sharad Jalswal
Director
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Place: Faridabad
Date: 24 May 2025




Chhabra Healtheare Selutlons Private timited
Statement. of Profit and Loss far the year anded 31 Mareh 2025
{Amount In Millions, unless otherwlse stated)

Particulars Nate No. For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 23 648.24 581.57
Other incame 24 1.56 1,00
Total Income 549,80 582.57
Expenses
Purchase of stock-in-trade 25 598.14 543,50
Changes Ininventorles of stock-In-trade 26 12,16 a75
Employee benefits expense 27 25.68 16,77
Finance costs 28 22.26 2268
Depreclation and amortization expenses 79 271 245
Gther expenses 0 14.28 17.22
Total expenses 675,23 606.27
Lass before tax {25,43} (24,20)
Tax expense
Current tax 31 - -
Deferred tax Income 29 - -
Total Income tax expense 0,00 0.00
Loss for the year (25.43) 124.20}
Other comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss
Remeasuremment galn / [loss) on defined benefit plan {0,02) 0,19
Income tax effect on remeasurement gain an delined benefit plan - -
Total [0.02) 0.19
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax {0.02) 0.19
Total comprehenslve income/expense for the year . {25.45) {24.01)
Earnlngs per equlty share [Nomina! value of share: Rs. 10 {31 March 2024 : Rs. 10})
Baskc and Diluted {Rs.) 32 [2543.46) {2419,95)
See accompanylng notes to the financial statements 1-49

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date

For Singh Chhabra & Co,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reglstration No.: 012127C

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U36900812018PTC338597

.
Harlsh K. Chifabra Kallash Sharma Sharad Jalswal
Partner Director Director
Membership No; 500104 DIN: 10602164 DIN: 10227043
Place: Delhi Place: Faridabad Place: Faridabad
Date; 24 May 2025 Date; 24 May 2025 Date; 24 May 2023

LdIn, 28 Lo oloYamLA B0, 3213



Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount in Milllens, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities
{Loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Finance cost
Interest on fixed deposits
Provision for claims recelvable
Provislon for expected credit loss
Operating profit hefore working capital changes

Changes in worklng capital

Decrease/{Increase) in inventories

{Increase) in trade receivables

Decrease/{increase) in other current assets
Decrease /(Increase) in other financial assets
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables
increasef{decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase in other financial liabilities
{Decrease)/Increase in provisions and employee benefits
Cash generated in operations

Income tax paid (includes advance tax)

Net cash flows generated In operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including movement in CWIP and capital advances

Net fixed deposit having maturity more than three months with bank placed

Interest received
Net cash flows {used] In Investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Payment of [ease liabilities

Finance costs paid
Net cash flows {used) in financing activities {C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise (refer note 12)
Balances with banks
In current accounts
Cash on hand
Total cash and bank balances at the end of the year

Fortheyearended 31 Fortheyearended 31

March 2025 March 2024
{25.43) (24.20)
2.7 2.45
22.26 22.68
(1.33) {0.81)
(0.27) -
2.89 0.94
0.83 1.06
192 3,75
(39.52) 4,31
428 {4.52)
(4.32) {0.22)
37.16 {10.17)
(2.00) 2,84
18,22 5.15
0.37 0.45
16.84 2.24
0,10 (0.08)
16.94 2,15
{12.93) (0.18)
0.00 {17.19)
1.33 -
{11.60) (17.38)
22.67 39.91
{4.05) (2.48)
{21.14) (22.67)
(2.52) 14,74
2.82 (0.50)
0,25 0.75
3.06 0.25
2.77 0.25
0.30 -
3.06 0.25




Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount in Millions, unless otherwlse stated)

Reconclliation of the moverments of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

. Fortheyearended 31 Fortheyearended 31
Particulars March 2025 March 2024

Opening balance

Cash credit facility 69.13 53.9%
Loans from related parties . - 134.70 109.94
interest accrued and due on borrowings 12.95 13.44
Total 216.78 177.37
Movement

Cash flows-cash credit facility (24.83) 15,14
Cash flows-loans from related parties 47.50 2476
Interest paid {6.86) (21.16)
Interest expenses 19.79 20.67

Closing balance

Cash credit facility 44,30 69.13
Loans from related partias 182.20 124.70
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 25.88 12,95
Total 252.38 216.78

1. The above Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Methed’ as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 7, statement of
cash flows as specified in the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards), Rulgs, 2015 {as amended).

2. Cash and cash equivalent comprises cash on hand, Current Accounts and deposits with banks with an original maturity of three months or less from the
date of deposits.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-49
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Singh Chhakbra & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Chhahra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 012127C CIN: U36200DL2018PTC338597

;¢ \
Harish K. Chhabra Kallash Sharma Sharad Jaiswal
Partner Diractor Director
Membership No: 500104 o A DIN: 10602164 DIN: 10227043
Place; Delhi Place: Faridabad Place; Faridabad
Date: 24 May 2025 Date: 24 May 2025 Date; 24 May 2025
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Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity share capital {Refer note 14)

Particulars

Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2023
Add: issued during the year

0.10

Balance as at 31 March 2024

0.10

Balance as at 1 April 2024
Add: [ssued during the year

0.10

Balance as at 31 March 2025

0.10

(B) Other equity (Refer note 15)

Reserve and surplus

Particulars

Retained earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2023 {27.33)
Changes during the year
Loss for the year {24.20)
Other comprehensive income for the year 0.19
Total comprehensive income for the year {24.01)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 . - (51.34)
Balance as at 1 April 2024 (51.34)
Changes during the year
Loss for thie year (25.43)
Other comprehensive income for the year (0.02)
Total comprehensive income for the year (25.46)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (76.79)
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-49
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date
For Singh Chhabra & Co. Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ) - Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Firm Registration No.; 012127C CIN: U36900DL2018PTC338597

\ ps
-
Harish K. Chhabra Kailash Sharma Sharad laiswal
Partner Nk > Director Director
Membership No: 500104 " DIN: 10602164 DIN: 10227043
Place: Delhi Place: Faridabad Place: Faridabad

Date: 24 May 2025 Date: 24 May 2025 Date: 24 May 2025




Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for_the year ending 31 March 2025
{(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1. Company Information:
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited (the “Company”) is a private limited company
incorporated in India on September 11, 2018, having its registered office at Plot No. 321, F.L.E Patparganj
Industrial Area, East Delhi, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110092.

The Company is a subsidiary of Entero Healthcare Solution Limited. The Holding company of Entero
Healthcare Limited is listed on National Stock Exchange (NSE} & Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The
Company is in the business of distributions and marketing of pharmaceutical products, Surgical Products
and other allied services.

2. Basis of Preparation, Measurement

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the "Act") read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016.
These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and on a going concern
basis

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following
material items which are measured on an alternative basis, required by relevant Ind AS, on each
reporting date;-
s Certain Financial assets are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial
instruments); B
s Employee’s net Defined Benefit (assets/liability) as per actuarial valuation; and
e Liabilities for Share-based payments arrangements,

These financial statements comprise the Balance Sheet at 315 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31% March 2024;

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires
a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors on 24 May , 2025.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to'the nearest million, unless atherwise indicated.




Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Functional and presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupee {INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Use of Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimates and judgements that affect the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the Balance Sheet date, reported amounts of Revenue and Expenses for the year
and disclosure of Contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and Judgements used in
the accompanying financial statements are based upon the Management’s evaluation of the relevant
facts and circumstances at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates, if any, are recognized prospectively in the year in which the estimates are revised
and in any future years affected. .
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements, is included in the following notes:

* Note (5A): Determination of estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment.

» Note {5B): Determination of discount rate and [ease term for the purpose of discounting of lease
payments.
> Note {8): recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profits against which
deductible temporary differences and carried forward tax losses can be utilized.

» Note (9): Income taxes: Significant judgements are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the
purpase of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected
to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions
s Note (33 (VII)): Measurement of Defined benefit Obligations: assumptions include salary escalation
rate, discount rate, expected rate of return on plan assets and mortality rates.

Note(34): Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: Key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.

e Note(38): Fair valuation of financlal assets and liabilities. When the fair value of financial assets and
liabilities cannot be measured on quoted prices in active markets, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques along with assistance from valuation experts.

o Note(39({A{i)}): measurement of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance for trade receivable and loans:
Key assumptions in determining the weighted average loss rate.

« Note (43): Impairment of goodwill: Key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts such as
estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins.
Cash flow projections take into account past experience and represent management’s best estimate

about future developments.




Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025
{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Falr value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the ifability takes place either:
o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
accessible to the Company.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. The Company’s management determines the policies and
procedures for fair value measurement,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized into different levels within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the level
of inputs used in the valuation techniques as set out below.
o level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
® level 2 —inputs other than quoted prices included in level one and Valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable,
¢ level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is based on unobservable market data.

Current and hon-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assetis
An asset Is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
® It s expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle, which is defined to be of twelve months.
* itis held primarily for the purposé of being traded;
s jtis expected to be realised within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
* it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.

Liabilities
Aliability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:




Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025
{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated}
s it is expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's’
normal operating cycle;
* itisheld primarily for the purpose of being traded;
¢ itisdueto be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
* the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for atleast
12 months after the reporting date. -

Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current,

NOTE 3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

-3.1 Business Combination
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition methed under the provisions of Ind AS
103, Business Combinations. At the acquisition date, identifiable assets acquired and labilities
assumed are measured at fair value. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent
liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition date fair values
irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. The
consideration transferred is measured at fair value at the acquisition date.

Where the consideration transferred exceeds the fair value of the net identifiable assets acguired and
liabilities assumed, the excess is recorded as goodwill. Alternatively, in case of a bargain purchase

- wherein the consideration transferred is lower than the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, the Group after assessing fair value of all identified assets and
liabilities, record the difference as a gain in other comprehensive income and accumulate the gain in
equity as capital reserve.

In case of business combinations involving entities under common control, the above policy does not
apply. Business combinations involving entities under common control are accounted for using the
pooling of interests method. The net assets of the transferor entity or business are accounted at their
carrying amounts on the date of the acquisition subject to necessary adjustments required to harmonise
accounting policies. Any excess or shortfall of the consideration paid over the share capital of transferor
entity or business is recognized as capital reserve under equity.

3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized as an asset if and only if, it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item, will flow to the Company and the cost item can
he measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises its purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset 1o its working condition for the intended use and present value of estimated costs of dismantling




Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts, rebates, input
tax credit (IGST/ CGST and SGST) or any other tax credit available to the company are deducted in arriving
at the purchase price. If significant parts of an Item of property, plant and equipment have significant
costs and different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment,

Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plaht and Equipment is capitalized only when itis probable
that the future economic benefits associated with that expenditure will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of the Property, Plant
and Equipment that takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized
up to the date such asset is ready for use.

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upan disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset} is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is calculated on the cost of items less there estimated
residual values, on straight-line method over their respective estimated useful lives, which is in line with
the estimated useful lives as specified in Schedule Il of the Compantes Act, 2013.

-

Particulars Useful Life as per prescribed in
Schedule [f of the Act (year)

Leasehold Improvement™® Lease Period

Computer and peripherals 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Office equipment 5

Vehicle 8

Plant and Machineries 15

Electrical Installations and Equipment 10

*Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease or useful life whichever is lower.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of
acquisition. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property plant and equipment is provided up to the date
p;eceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be. Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate,




Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3.3 Goodwill:

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
consideration transferred over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, in accordance
with Ind AS 103.

Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment [osses.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (CGUs) for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those CGUs or group of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

3.4 Other Intangible Assets

Intangible -assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.

The cost comprises purchase price, directly.attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for the intended use. Any trade discounts, rebates, input tax credit {IGST/ CGST and SGST) or any other tax
credit available to the company are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of intangible asset that
takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized from the date it meets
capitalization criteria till such asset is ready for use.

intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If
the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization
period is changed prospectively.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of

profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

A summary of amortization period applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as helow:

Particulars Useful life {years)
Computer software 3-5




Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated) i

3.5 Revenue Recognition
Revenue from Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers, generally on delivery of
goods at the agreed point of delivery, Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third
parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded
provided the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable. Revenue also excludes taxes
collected from customers.

Invoices are usually payable based on the credit terms agreed with customers which vary up to 90 days.

Other Income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the applicable interest rate. Interest Income is recognized on a basis of effective interest method as set
out in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability or
collectability exists.

Marketing Support

Marketing support income is recognized upon completion of promised services to customers. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recelvable, excluding discounts, incentives,
performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar
items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided the recovery
of consideration is probable and determinable,

3.6 Taxes A
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

a} Current Income Tax;

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of the previous years. Current tax Assets and
liabilities represents the best estimates of the amounts expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation
authorities. The Tax Laws and Tax rates used to compute the amounts are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized balances and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred Tax:
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated). -
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in financial statements.
Deferred income tax Is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit {tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and
laws} that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be utilised,

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when probability of
future taxable profit improve, : i

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid ta the tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is 3 legally enforceahble right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

3.7 intangible Asset Under Development

The Company capitalizes intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy. Initial capitalization of costs is based on management’s Judgement that technological
and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a
defined milestone according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts
to be capitalized, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of
the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

3.8 Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
anidentified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i} the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(if} the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (iii} the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
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(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
At commencement or on modification of the contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative
standalone prices. However, for the leases of property the company has elected not to separate non
lease component and account for the lease and non lease components as a single lease component.

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset and lease liability representing its right to use the underlying
asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured
at inception shall comprise the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and estimate an present vaiue of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset and restoring the site on which it is located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over
the lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset whichever is earlier. The estimated useful lives of right-
of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use
assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that thelr carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Company uses incremental borrowing rate, on a lease by {ease basis, may adopt either the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolia as
awhole.

The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees,
exerclse price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that eption and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option
to terminate the lease. The lease liabllity is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made
and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

‘The company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of iease liability due to modification as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset and in the statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature
of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining
amount of the re-measurement in the statement of profit and loss.

For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Short-term feases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use asset and lease liability for leases of properties
that are having non-cancellable {ease term of less than 12 months. The Company recognizes the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis aver the lease term.
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3.9 Inventories

The inventory comprises traded goods which are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable vaiue.
Cost of inventory of traded goods is arrived at based on actual cost of the “batch” which comprises cost

of purchase and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventorles to their present location and
condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale,

Provision is made for the cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, whenever considered
necessary. '

3.10 Impairment of Non-Financial Assats

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non
financial asset or a Company of non financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested for
impairment annually at each balance sheet date, or earlier, if there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired,

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable
amount. Losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and presented in an allowance account.
When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below} is the greater of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assels are accompanied together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or group of of assets (the
“Cash-Generating Unit” - CGU).

3.11 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates,
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The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or where a reliable
estimate of the obligation cannot be made. When there is @ possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are neither recorded nor disclosed in the financial statements.
3.12 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand , cash at banks and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance
sheet,

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash on hand and cash at
banks and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months.

3.13 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(A) Financial assets

(i) Recognition and Initlal measurement
At initial recognition, financial asset is measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial
asset not “at fair value through profit or loss” are measured at transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financlal asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amortized cost; or
b) at fair value through other comprehensive income; or
c) at fair value through profit or loss,

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the related cash flows.
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(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
{FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amounts are taken through Other Comprehensive income {‘ocr),
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognized in statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognized,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from equity to statement of profit
and loss and recognized in other gains/ {losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included
in “Other income” using the effective interest rate method,

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or EVOCI
are measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss. Interest and dividend income from these
financial assets is included in “Other income”, Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
income are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Equity. Instruments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as FVTPL, For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in OC! subsequent changes in
the fair value in other comprehensive income. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on Injtial recognition and is irrevocable,

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCl. There is no reclassification of the amounts
from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii} Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL)
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at
amortized cost and FVOCI,
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For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.

Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECLis the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of
the financial instrument {including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial
instrument, However, in rare cases when the_expected life of the financial instrument cannot be
estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument.

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the
payment is more than 90 days past due.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal} recognized during the year is recognized as income/expense
in the statement of profit and loss. In balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at amortized cost
is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impalrment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

{iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset Is derecognized only when

a) the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or

b} retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or mare recipients.

Where the financial asset is transferred then in that case financial asset is derecognized only if
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is transferred. Where the entity
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognized.

(B) Financial liabilities
(i} Recognition and Initial measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss or at amortized cost, as appropriate.
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All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. -

(i) Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held
for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and [oss.

(ifi) Loans and borrowings

After initlal recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. EIR
is calcutated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit
and Loss,

{iv) Derecognition of Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, stuch an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference In the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as
finance costs,

{C) Embedded Derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-
derivative host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary
in @ way similar to a standalone derivative. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are
separated if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated,

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of

the fair value through profit or loss.

(D) Offsetting financial instruments




Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

3.14 Employee Benefits

(a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the year and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

{b} Post employment benefit plans
(i) Defined contribution plan : -

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations, Such benefits are classified as Definad Contribution Schemes as the

- Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis
which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees’ state insurance scheme is made
to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified
as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the
contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions.

{ii) Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (covering eligible employees in
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to
vested employees at retirement, death, Incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount
based on the respective employee's salary. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in the other
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Costs comprising service cost (including current and past service cost and gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements) and net interest expense or income is recognized in profit or |oss.

The obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions

to the plans.
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Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected ta be availed or
encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The
obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences
as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company's liability
is actuarially determined {using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/gains are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Leaves under define benefit plans can be encashed only on discontinuation of service by employee.

3,15 Foreign Currency Transactions

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction. Gains/Losses arising out of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between the transaction
date and settlement date are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All monetary assets and [iabilities in foreign currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange rate
prevailing at the year end and the exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

3.16 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The weighted average numbers of equity shares are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
elementin the rights issue, share split and reverse share split {consolidation of shares) that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all potential dilutive equity shares.

3.17 Share Based Payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to the employees via the Share based long term
incentive scheme.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made
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5{A) Praperty, plant and equipment

Gross block Depredation Net block
Agquired through
Partlculars Asat Asat Asat Asat Asat
o1 Apitzoz4  Addllons buslness Reddclions o march2025| 01 Aprtaneg  FOrthevear  Deductlons oo e | 31 march 202
comblnatlon

Cwned assets A

Plant and machinerics 0.25 0,04 0.08 - 037 012 0.02 - 014 .23
Funlture and fixtures 0.05 034 002 - 041 0.02 0,01 - 0.03 038
Electrical Installatian 0.02 - 0.00 - 0.02 0,01 000 - 0,01 o0.01
Office equipment 0.46 0.08 0.0 - 055 032 .07 - 039 0.15
Vehicle 030 - 0,04 - 0.34 013 .63 - 0.16 0.18
Computer and peripherls 2.68 0.06 0.04 - 2.78 2.46 0.13 - 2.64 0.14

Total 3.76 052 0.19 - 4.47 308 0,31 - 337 110

Gross block Deprediation Net bleck
Aquirad through
Particulars Asat Asat Asat Asat Asat
OlAgiizoza  Pddlions buslness Dedicthons 5 parch2020| D1apetizoes  FOTthevear  Beductions b a] 3 march 2024
comblnation

Owned assets
Plant and machinerles 225 - - - 0.25 0.11 001 - 012 013
Funiture and fixtures 0,05 - - - 0.05 001 0.00 - 0.02 0.03
Electrical installation 0.0z - - . 0.02 0.01 0.00 - 0.01 0.01
Office equipment 0.43 0.03 - - 048 PED] 0.02 - 032 0,13
Vehicle 039 - - - 0.20 012 (X1} - 043 0.17
Compitter and perlphersls 249 018 - . 2.68 245 6oL - 246 0.22
Tatal 3.54 .21 - - 3.75 3.00 0.05 - 3.06 [
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5[8) Right of use assels

Gross block Amortlzation et block
Particulars Asot Revatuation of Asat Asat Asat Asat
01Apriz024  Addltians Assets Deductions oy march2025| ot apriizozs  FOTtheyear  Deductions o oo ag March2nss
Leased assels
Right of use asset - Bullding [refer note- 41) 21.58 - - - 21.58 12.99 240 . 1538 6.19
Tatal 21.58 - - - 21.58 12.59 2.40 - 15.39 6.19
Gross blotk Amortization Net block
Partleulars As at Revaluatlon of Asat Asat As at Asat
01 Aprll 2023 Addittons Assels Deductlans 31 March2024| D1 Apell 2023 For the yaar Deductlons 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Lezsed assets
Right of use asset - Bullding [refer note-~ 41] 21.58 - . - 2158 10,59 .40 - 1259 8.59
[Total 2158 - - - 2158 10.58 2.40 - 12.95 9.59
& Goodwill
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance - -
Additien durlrg the year {rofer note 44) 12.23 -
Impalrmentof goodwlil {Refer note 43) - -
Closiag balance 12.23 -
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7 Gtherfinanclal assets

Partleulars - As at31 March 2025 As at31 March 2024
Non-Cerrent Current on- Currant Cumant
Unzetured, considered good
Security deposlts (at amortlsad cost) o.02 - 0.02 -
Interestacerued on fixed depasit - 0.03 - @13
Otherreccfvablas - 452 - 0.10
Tatal 0.02 554 0.02 0.22
8 Deferedtax assets {net)

Particulars Asat Asat

31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Delerred tax assel on account of; _—
Gratulty & Leave Encashment Q.93 a33
B provided but allowakla In Income Tax on basls {052} [¢11ls]
On Ind AS 116 AdJustment 101 11
Expected Credit Loss Provision 3.8 3.00
Unabserbed depredation 071 -
Unabscrbed loss. 13.09 -
Timing difference between tax depreciation and depreclation charged I the books {0.10) (0.02)
Netdeferred tax assets® 1847 142

*Note : Ho deferred tax acset has been recognlsed at the year end a5 it Is not reasanably eertaln that sufficlent Income will e available In the farseable future agalnst such deferred 1ax assat can be utlifsed.

&2 Note [a): Summary of defared tax assets/{Jablitles]
Parlestars Asat [Charged}f [chorged)} A ut
D1 Apuil 2024 Credited to PEL Credlted to 00 31 March 2025
Timing difference hetween tax depreclation and deprediation
charged In the botks . . - - {0.30)
Expenses provided but allowable In Incame Tax on payment basis ' - - - {052}
On Ind AS 116 Adjustment - - - 101
Gratulty & [save encazhment - - - ¢:43
Expeeted eredit [oxs pravislen - - - 385
Unabsorbed depreciation - - - o
Unabsorked loss - - - 13.09
Ret Netdelerred tax sssetsf{labllity} - - - 13.47
L
Asat {Charged)/ [charged)f Asut
partlculars OLApHIZ023  CraditadtoPRL  reditedtoOc] 30 March2n2e
Timing difference between tax depradation and depreclation
thorged n the baoks - - - (0,02)
Expenses provided but allawable In income Tax an payment basls - - - o.00
OnInd AS 116 Adjustment - - - 111
Gratulty & leave sncashment - - - 033
Exprcted credit loss provision - - - 3.00
Unabsarbed dapreclation - - - -
Unabsorbed loss - - - =
NetHat deferrad tax assate/(llabllity) - - - £.42
‘The Company has not created deferred tax asset on unabserbed depredation and other Items to the extest of defecred tax llabliity,
Asat Asat
9 Noncurrent tax assets (Net) 31 March 2025 31 March 2¢24
Advance Income tax {Net of proviston; Rs. (0,06} milllons (31 march 2024 Rs, .10 mllilons) (0.0} 0.10
Total [0.05} 0.10
_ r—
10 Inventorfas® '
At loweraf cortand natrealizabla value
Stockin trade { Refer note 26)* £60.94 52.B6
Total 50.93 62,86

*Inventery pledged a5 socurlty by the Company (refer note 17)
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1

13

Trade recelvable
Unsecured
~Considered good 142.67 106.14
~Consldersd doubtiul 14.81 11.92
157.68 1138.08
Lessi- Expected loss allowances {14.81) (11.97)
Tetal 14287 106.14
Aot
Further dassiled as:
Receivable from related parties {refer note 40} 3.84 257
Recelvable from others 139.03 103.55
B 142.87 106.14
Tae In alt for axpectad credit loss Is n3 follows
Opening Balance 1192 10.97
Change in alfowance for expected credit loxs during the year .89 0.95
Wiite off durlag the yeae . .
Ooslng Balance 1581 1152
—
Trade recelvables xzelng schedule
As nt 31 March 2025
Particulars/ year LeesThanBMonthe | 6Monthsto 1yaar 1-2years 2-3years Mare than 3 years Total
{l] Undisputed trade recslvable - considered goad 103.12 15.091 1141 . 10,42 142,87
(i} Undisputed trada recelvable ~Which have signlficant fnerease
In credit sk - - - - - -
i) Undispssted trade recelvable - credit Impateed - - . . . .
(iv} Undisputed trade recelvabla - considered doubtful 009 o 0.63 453 246 14.21
[v) Disputed trade recelvable « considerad good - . . - . .
{vi} Dispiited trade recefvab fdered doubtful - . . - . .
Legs: All far exy d credit [oss - . - -+ - {14.81)|
Yotal 103.21 15,95 14.04 4.5% 1088 14287
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars/ year Lusx thaiit § Manths 6 Months to 1 year 1-Zysars 2-Iyears Bors than 3 years Total
1) Undlsputed trade recelvabh Adered good 67.83 1050 16,67 11.14 . 106,14
[} Undisputed 1rade recefvable “Which have slgnificant Inease
Incredit dsk - - - - - -
[N} Ung d trade rec le = credit | d - - - . N -
(v} Undl d irade ble + tonsidered deubiiv) 0.09 .03 0.65 11.34 - 1192
vl d trade ble Idered good - - . - - -
[vi] Disputad tzade receivable - considared doubtful - - . . . .
Less: All for d eredit loss . - : . - [11.92}
Tatal 57.91 10.53 17.32 22.29 - 106.14
There are no unbilled and not due recelvables
Asat Asat
Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balanees with banks:
tn current accaunts 77 0.35
Cashonhand - 0.30 .
Frote! 3.06 0.25
Asat Asal
Bank batances cther than cash and cash equivalent 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
In fixed depocit with maturity for mace than 3 months but less than 12 months from balance sheel date* 18.00 13.00
Total 18.00 18.0¢
Note : *ineludes Bs. 18 miTllons fixed deposits pledged agalnst cash eredit Facility
Othercucrant ascats
Prepald expantes 0.81 035
Advance te supplies . 473
Staff advances 0.00 0.01
Yotal 0.81 509
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i5 Equity Share capltal

16

Partieulars As gt Asat

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a. Authorised Share Capltal
10,000 (31 March 2024: 20,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 0,10 0.10
Total. 0,10 0.10

b, Issued, Subscrlbed and Pald-up;

10,000 {31 March 2024; 10,000 Equlty Shares of Rs, 10 each 010 0,10
Total 0.10 0,10
Asat Asat

¢. Reconciiiation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
and at the end of the year

Moofshares  Amount No of shares Amount
Qutstandlng at the begianing of the year 10000 0,10 10,000 0.10
Add: Issued during the year - - ~ -
Qutstanding at the end of the yeor 10,600 0.10 10,000 0.10

d. Rights, proferances and restrictlons attachod to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each shareholder |5 entltled to one vate per share held, The Company
declares and pays dividends In Indlan rupees, The dividend proposed by the Beard of Directars s subject to the approvat of the sharehalders [n the ensulng Annval
General Meeting. In the event of liguldation of the Company, the holders of equity_shares will ba entitled to recelve remalning assets of the Company, after
distributlan of all preferentlal amounts, The distributton will bu in praportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

e.Shares held by Holding Company/ultimate HoldIng Company and/ or thelr subsidlarias/ assoclates

Asat As at
Name of the sharcholder 31 March 2025 32 March 2024
No of shares % Na of shares %
. Holding Campany
Enterg Healtheare Selutions Umlted Including shares held by nomince 10000 1.0 10,000 100%

f. Detalls of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares In the Company

Asat Asat
Name of the shareholder 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No of shares % No of shares %
Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited Including shares hetd by nominee 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00
g St Iding of Promotors at tha end of the year
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Name of the sharcholder

¢ Noof shares % of Total Share % change Noof shares % of Total Share % change during

durlng the yoar the year

Entera Healthcare Solutlans Umited® 10,000 100% - 10,008 100% -

*0ut of total 10,000 equity shares, Mr, Prabhat Agrawal holds 1 equity share Le. 0.01% of total shares, as nominee of Entero Healthcare Soluticns Umlted,

h. Wo class of shares have been lssued as bonus shares or for consideration bther than cash by the Company during the year of twe years Immediately preceding the

1. No class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the year of two years immediately preceding the current year end.

Other equlty
Asat Asat

Particulars 1 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Retalned Earnings

Opening balanca {51.34) {27.33)
Add: Net loss for the year {25.43) {24.20)
Less: Re-measurement gain on post employment benefit obligatlon (net of tax} [0.02} 013
Closing halance {76.79) {51.34)

Matuee and ptirposes of Reserves
fetalned Earnings
This reserve represents undistributed losses of the company as on the balance sheet date. Retalned earnlngs Includes re-measurement galn/{loss) on defined

benefit obligations, net of taxes that will not be reclassifled to Profit and Loss.

e
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Notes ferming part of the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
[Amount In Milllens, unless otherwise stated)

Parilculars Asat 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

17 Borrowlngs . Long term Short term Long term Short term
{I) Secured, from Bank:
Working capital demand loan

Cash credit* - 44,30 - £69.13
(i} Unsecured , fram related partles ¢
Loans and advances from related partles** [Refer note 40) 160.00 22,20 - 134,70
160.00 66,50 - 203.83
*Cash credit/ WCDL

Qutstanding eash credit and working capital facility ks 44.30 (Mareh 2024: Rs. 69.13 milllon : Secuved agalnst 254 margin on Inventories and trade recaivables In addition ta Axad deposit te the
extent of 202 of the facllity amount & parf passu charge on entire current assets of borrawer, present and future.

{Facllity amount; March 2025:100 milllen (March 2024: 100 million); Rate of Interest : Repo Rate + 3,30%; Effective Interest rate for the year 31 March 2025: 9.0% [31 March 2024 : 10.00% to
13.50% p.a.)

**Loan from related party

The company has avalled unsecured shart termy long term loan frem Helding Company to be repayable on demand and over a period of 5 years, respectively. These loans carry a Interest rate af
9.00% p.a.{31 March 2024:13.00% p.a.}

18  Leasellability Asat 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
At amartised cost Long term Short term Long term Short term
Lease Liabllity {Refer note 41) _ 6.63 3.44 10,07 2,93
Total B 6.63 3.44 10.07 2,93
18 Provislons
a]  Provision for employee henefits {refer note 33)
Provislon for gratulty [unfunded) - 1,42 0.23 1,10 0.22
Tatal 1.42 0.23 1.10 0.22
20 Trade payablos
Partfculars Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total sttstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 3.44 0.58
Total autstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small entarprises® 43,78 9,75
Total 47.22 10.32

20,1 Trade payable agelng schedule

As at 31 March 2025

Outstanding for Following years from the date of transaction

L

particulars unbilled dues Not dues es;:::n * 1-2 years 2-3years | More than 3 years [Total
MSME - - 327 0,05 0.06 0.06 3.44
Other - - 43.78 - - - 43.78
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - B - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - -
Total - - 47.05 0.05 0,06 0.06 47.22

As at 31 March 2024

Outstanding for Followlng years from the date of transaction
Particilars Payables not tess than 1

Unbllted dues 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years [Total
due year
MSME - - 0.58 - - 0.58
Other - - 870 105 - 9.75
Disputed dues 1 MSME - - - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - -
Total - - 9.28 1.05 - - 10.33
S
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20,2 Disclosure relating to suppliers reglstered under MSMED Act based on the Infermation avallable with the Company:

Partlculars Asat Asat

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

[a) Amount remalning unpald to any suppller at the and of #ach accounting years

Principal 3.44
Interest

Total 3.449
[b} The amount of interest pald by the buyer In terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the payment made to the suppller| .

heyond the appelnted day durlng each accounting year.
{c) The amount of Interest due and payable for the year of delay [n making payment (which have been pald but beyond the appelnted day durlng the -
year) but without adding the Interest spacified under the MSMED Act.
{d) The amaunt of interest accrued and remalning unpald at the end of each accounting year. -
{e) The amount of further Interest remalning due and payable even In the succeeding years, untll such date when the Interest dues above are actually -
pald ta the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure unde_rsecunn 23 of the MSMED Act.

* Refer note 40 for trade payables to related partles

Note : The Cempany has not provided for Interest on delayed payments to suppliers and ather partles, Including those potentlally covered under the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 [MSMED Act), or under contractual obligations, wheraver applicable.

21 Otherflnandal liablities

Particulars  ° Asat Asat

31 March 2025 31 Miarch 2024

Interest accrued and due op barrewlngs 25.88
Employee lfabilitles 1.52
Other financlat kablliles 3.00
Other payables - 8,30
Total 38.80

22 Dther current [abilitles
Statutory dues payable 2.15

Toral 2,15
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Notes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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23 Revenue from operations

Forthe yearended 31  Far the year ended

Partlculars
March 2025 31 March 2024
Sale of goods 648.24 581.57
Total 648.24 581,57
Analysis of revenues by segments:
Trading of pharmaceutical and surgical products. 648.24 581,57
Revenue hased on timing of recognition
Revenue recognition at a point in time 648.24 581,57
Total 648.24 581,57
24 Other Income
Interest in income tax refund - - -
Miscellaneous income 0.23 0.9
Interest on fixed deposits 1,33 0.81
Total 1.56 1,00
25 Purchase of stock-In-trade
Purchases of stock-in-trade 598.14 543,90
Total 598.14 543.90
26 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Inventories at the beginning of the year
-Stock In trade 62.86 66.61
Inventories as at the date of acquisition of subsidiary / business : 10.23 -
73.09 66.61
Less: Inventorles at the end of the year
-Stock in trade [ Refer note 10} 60.94 (62.86}
60.94 {62.86)
Net (increase)/decrease 12.16 3,75
27 Employee beneflts expense .
Salarles, wages, bonus and other allowances 23,39 14.55
Contributlon to provident fund and other fund 1,26 1.28
Gratulty and compensated absences expenses {refer note 33} 0.44 0.45
Staff welfare expenses 0.60 0.49
‘Total 25,68 16.77
28 Flnance costs
{i} Interest on Borrowlngs
On bank loan 5.42 6.28
On loan from Holding Company (refer note 40) 14.37 14.38
{ti) Others ‘
Processing fees 0.61 0.61
Interest on delay In payment of taxes 0.16 0.03
Corparate gurantee comrnission 0,58 -
Interest expense on [ease |labilities 1.12 1,38
Total 22.26 22,68
29 Depreclatlon and amortization expense
Depreclation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 5 {A}) 0.31 0.05
Depreclation on right of use asset {Refer note 5(B)) 2.40 2.40

Total 2.71 2.45




Chhabra Healtheare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount In Milllons, unless otharwise stated)

30 Otherexpenses

Fortheyearended 31  Forthe year ended

Particulars
March 2025 31 March 2024
Rent 0.21 0.00
Rates and taxes 0.02 -
Legal and professional charges 0.60 0.75
Travelling expenses 0.28 039
Power and fuel 1.84 1.77
Repalrs and maintenance 0.95 1.84
Distributlan cost 4,40 117
Printing and statlonery 0.38 0,40
Communlcation expenses 0.27 0.25
Net Impalrment losses on trade recelvables/Financlal assets . - 289 0.94
Business promotlon expenses ! - 0.00
Office expenses 0.01 -
Auditor's remuneration (refer note below)* 0.31 0.33
Housekeeping expenses 0.57 0.38
Buslness promotlon eXpense 0.34 -
Business suppaort charges (refer note 40} 0.79 5.92
Provision for clalms 0.27 -
Insurance 0.10 0.14
Miscellaneous expenses 0.05 2,94
Total 14.28 17,22
*Note : The following Is the break-up of Audltors remuneration (exclusive of taxes)
As audltor:
Statutory audit (Including Limited review) fees 0.31 0.25
Other matters {including reimbursement of out of pocket expenses)* - 0.08
Total 0.31 0.33
31 IncomeTax

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year - -

Tax expense related to prior years : - - -
Total Current Tax - -

Deferred tax expense {Income) - -
Total tax expense 8.00 0.00

No deferred tax asset has been recognlsed at the year end as It Is not reasonably certiatn that suffiecient Income will be avallable In the forseable future
agalnst such deferred tax asset can be utilised

In view of losses there Is no current tax expense for the year and accordingly, the disclosure of reconclllation of tax expense with accounting profit / {loss)
multiplied by statutory Income tax rate 1s not applicable

32 Earnings per share

Profit attributable to the equity halders of the Company (A} {25.43) {24.20}
Weighted Average number of shares Issued for Basic EPS (B) 0.01 0.01
Adjustment for calculation of Diluted EPS { ¢) - -

Weighted Average number of shares Issued for Diluted EPS (D= B+C) 0.01 0.01

Basic and Dituted [Rs.) {2,543.46) {2,419.96)
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33  Employee benefits:

I, Deflned contributien plans
The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employers as under:
a, Provident fund
b. Employee State Insurance fund
c. Labour welfare fund

The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan -

Partlculars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Contributicn to provident fund 1.0t 1.02

Employers contributlon to employee state Insurance 0,26 0,26

Il. Defined beneiit plans
Gratulty

The Company has an unfunded Gratuity Scheme for Its employees and gratuity llabllity has been provided based on the actuarlal valuation dene at the year end. The presant value of the
defined beneflt abligations and the refated current service cost and past service cost were measured using the Projected Unit Credlt Method,

The actuarlal valuation of the defined benefit obligation was carrled out at the balance sheet date, The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and
past service cost were measured using the Profected Unit Credit Method, . -

Based on the actuarial valuation obtalned in this respect, the following table sets out the detalls of the employee benelit obligation as at balance sheet date;

For the year endet For the year ended

SriNo  Deflned benefit plans 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Gratulty Gratulty
[Unfunded) {Unfunded}
| Expensesrecognised In statement of profit and loss durlng the year:
Current service cost 0.34 0.36
et Interest cost / (Income) on the net deflned benefit llability f {asset} 0.10 0,00
Total expenses 0.42 0.45
Il Expenses recognised In other camprehensive Income
Amount recognized In OCl, Beginnlng of year {o.08) 011
Actuarlal {galns} / losses due to financlal assumption changes in defined banefit oblizations 0.03 0.01
Actuarial {galns)/ losses due to experience on defined benefit obligations {o.01) [0.20)
Total Remeasurements recognized in OCI 0.02 {0.19)
Total expenses {0.05} (0.08)
1l Netasset [(ability} recognised a3 at balance sheet date:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 1.65 133
Total 1,65 1.33
IV Movements In present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined henefit obligatlon at the beginning of the year 133 1.06
Current service cost 034 0,36
Interest cast 0,10 ©.09
Actuarlal galns 0,02 (0.19}
Benefits pald {0.13) 0,00
Present value of deflned benefit obligation at the end of the year 165 1.33
¥ Maturity profile of defined beneiit oblfgation
Expected cash flows aver the next (valued on undiscounted basis):
1st Following year 0.27 023
2nd Following year 0.27 Q.15
3rd Following year 0,24 0.21
14th Following year 021 0,19
5th Followlng year 0.20 0.17
Sum ofyears 6To 10 0.69 Q.58

Sum of years 11 and above 0.48 0.43
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For the year ended For the year ended
Partlculars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Gratulty Gratulty
{Unfunded) {Unfunded)
VI Quantitative sensitlvity analysls for significant assumptions Is as below:
{i) 419 increase in discount rate {0.07) {0.06)
[H) -1% decrease In discount rate o.08 0.06
(ili} +1% increase In rate of salary Increase 0.08 ooy
{Iv} -1% decrease In rate of salary increase {0.08} {0.08)

2 Sensitivity analysis method

The sensitivity analysls have heen determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year, while Hofding all other
assumptions censtant. )

Furthermare, In presenting the ubove sensitivity analysls, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has heen calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end
of the reporting year, which Is the same method as applled In calculating the projected henefit obligation as recoghlsed In the balance sheet.

There was no change In the metheds and assumptlons used In preparing the sensitivity analysls from prior years,

Vil Actuarlal assumptionst Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1 Discount rate 6.66% 1.13%
2 Expected rate of salary increase 8.00% 2.00%
3 Rate of emplayee turnaver 20,00% 20.00%
4 Mortality rate during employment Indlan Assured Lives  Indian Assured Lives
Mortality [2012-14) Uit  Mortality {2012-14) Ult
5  Retlrement age 58 years 58 years
Notes:

a)  The rate used to discount past-employment benefit obligations Is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reperting year on government bonds,
b} The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuariz] valuation take account of inflation, senicrity, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in
the employment market.
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34

35

36

37

Contingent fiabilities & commitments

1} Yhere are no contingent liabilities & cornmitments as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

11} The Company will continue to assess the Impact of further developments relating ta retrospective application of Supreme Court judgement dated February 28,
2012 clarifylng the definition of 'haslc wages' under Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1952 and deal with it accordingly. In the assessment
of the management, the afuresaid matter Is not likely to have a significant impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in these Standalone Financial
Statements.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported In a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker {("CODM”} of the Company, The
director of the Company acts as the (CODM}, The Company operates only In one business segment l.e. trading of pharmaceutical and surgical praducts and hence,
the Company has only ane separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

Capital Management -

For the purpose of the Company’s capltal management, capital Includes Issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management Is to safeguard the Company's ability to remain a5 a going concern and maximise the
shareholder value.The Company manages Its capital structure and makes adjustments In light of changes In economic conditions. The Company includes within net
debt, interest bearlng borrowings and lease liabilities net of cash and cash equivalent as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Company has negative total
equity. The Company 1s also having financial support form its Holding Company for its working capltal requirement.

The Company's adusted net debt to equity ratio Is as follows.

Asat Asat

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Borrowings
Long term borrowings 160.00 -
Shert term borrowings 66.50 203.83
Less: cash and cash equivalents {3.06) {0.25)
Adjusted net debt (A} 223.43 203,58
Total equity (B} (76.69) (51.24)

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio*® - -
*Not cormputed for current year and previous year In the view of negative denominatar

Events after reporting date
There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.
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38 Falrvalue mensurements

A. Accounting classificatian and falr values
The followlng table shows the carrying amounts of financlal assats and financial Habllitles. It doas nat Inefuda falrvalue Informatlon for financial assets and financlal lizbllltfes
not moasured at fair value If tha carrying amount Is a raagonable approximation af falr vaiue,

Partleul Carrylng Amount
arllculors AVTRL ATOG Am;r::zed Totsl
Financial assets and Ilakilitles a5 at 31 March 2025
Non-turrent fnanclal assets
Qther financial assets - . 002 0.0z
Current financlal assets
Trade racelvables . . 142.87 142.87
Cash and cash equivalents - - 3.06 3.08
Bank balaness other than cash and cash equivalent 18.00 18.00
Other financlal assets - - 0.02 0.02
Tota! - - 163,97 163.97
Non-current finandal liabllitles
Lease labilitles - - 6.63 6.63
Borrawlngs - - 160.00 150.00
Current financlal Habllitles -
Barrowlings - - 66.50 66,50
Trade payables . - 47.22 4722
Laasn liabllities - . 3.44 3.44
Other financlal Kabllitles - - 38.80 38.80
Total - - 322,58 322.58
Camylng Amaount
Particulars FVTRL Roa Amertized Total
Cost
Financtal assets and lfabliltles as at 31 March 2024
Nog-current financal assets
Other financlal assets - - 0.02 0.02
Current financlal assets
Investmant
Trade racaivablos - - 105,24 106.14
Cash und cash equlvalents - - 0.25 0.25
Bank balancas ather than cash and cash equivalent 18.00 18.00
Other financlal assets - - 0,22 0.22
Total - - 124.62 124.62
Non Current financlal labllitles
Bormowings - - - .
Lease Nabiiitles - . - 10.07 10.07
Current financlal llakitltles
Borrowlngs - - 203.83 203.83
Trada payablos - - 1032 10,32
Lease llabllitles - - 243 293
Qther flnanclal lfabllitfes - - 4.15 4,15
Total - - 23131 231,31

B. The carrylng amotints of trade recelvables, trade payables, deposits, other racalvables, cash and cash squivalent Including other eurrent bank balances and othar lizbilities
Including deposits, creditors for capltal expenditure, etc, are cansidered to ke the same as thelr falr values, due to current and short term nature of such batances.

C. Falr Value Hlerarchy

The falr value of financlal instruments as raferred to above have been classified Inta three categorles depending an the lnputs used (n the valuation technique. The hlararchy
glves the highest priority to quoted prices In active mzrkets for Idgntlcal assats or llabilities {leval 3 measurements] and lowast pricrity 1o unobsaevable Inputs (Lavel 3
measurermentsh.

Level 1: Leval 1 hizrarchy includes financial Instruments measurad using quotad prices. This includas listed aquity Instruments and mutual funds that have quated price. The
fairvalue of all aquity Instruments which are traded In the stock exchanges Is valued using the closing price as at the reporting year.

Level 2: The falr valua of financial Instrumants that are not traded I an active market s determinad using valuation tochnlguas which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as liitle as possible on ontity-spacifie estimutes, If all s'gniflcant inputs requlred ta falr valve an (nstrumant are observable, the Instrument Is Included In
level 2,

Level 3: If one or mare of the signlficant Inputs s nat based on cbservable market data, the Instrument Is Included In level 3. This Is tha case for unllsted equity securitles
Included In lavel 3.
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39 Financlal Risk Management
The Company has In place comprehensive risk management policy tn order to ldentify measure, monitor and mitlgate various risks pertalning to its
business. Along with the risk management pollcy, an adequate internal contral system, commensurate to the size and complexity of its business, Is
maintained to align with the philosaphy of tha Company. Together they help in achieving the business goals and obJectlves consistent with the Company's
strategles to prevent Inconslstencies and gaps between its pollcles and practices, Tha Board of Directors/committtees reviews the adequacy snd
effectjveness of the risk management policy and Internal cantrol system, The Company’s financial risk management is an Integral part of how te plan and
execute its business strategles,
The Company has exposure to the following rlsks arlsing from financial Instrements:
s Credit risk
* Liquidity risk and
» Market risk

{A) Credit Risk
,Credit 1lsk is the risk of financial (oss to the Company If a custamer or counterparty to a financial Instrument fails to meet its cantractual ohligations, and
arises principally from the Company’s trade and other receivables. The carrying amounts of financial asseks represent the maximum credit risk exposure,

1} Trade and Gther Recelvables

Trade recelvables are typlcally unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed from customers located In India, Credit risk has always been managed by
the Company through credit approvals, establlshing credit Iimits and continuausty manitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company
grants credit terms In the normal course of busines.

Summary of the compay’s exposure to cred|t rlsk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

Trade Receivakle
Particular. Asat Asat

¥ 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Unsecured
-Consldered gead 142.87 105.14
-Consldered doubtful 14,81 11,92
Grass Trade Recelvables 157.68 118.06
Less: Provision for expected credit [oss [14.81) {11.92)
Net Trade Recelvables 142.87 106.14

On account of adeption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit Joss model to assess the impairment loss, The Company camputes the expected
credlt loss allowance as per simplified approach for trade recelvables based on avaifable external and Internal credit risk factors such as the agelng of its
dues, market information about the customer and the Company’s historical experlence for customers. The Company has used a practical expedient by
computing the expected eredit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provislon matrix, The provislon matrix takes Into account historical credit
loss experlence and is based on the ageing of the receivable days and the rates as given In the provision matrix.

H) Loans and Ananclal assets measured at amortized cost
Loans and advaces given comprises of inter Company loans hence the risk of default from these companles are remote,The Company monitors each loans
and advances glven and makes any specific proviston wherever required.

1li. Cash and bank balances

The Campany held cash and cash equivalent and other bank balance of Rs. 3.06 milllon at 31 March 2025 (31March 2024: Rs, 0.25 millica). The same are
held with bank and financial Institution counterparties with good credit rating. Also, Company Invests its short term surplus funds In bank fixed deposit
which carry no market risks for short duration, therefore does not expose the Company to credit risk,

Iv. Others
Apart from trade recejvables loans and cash and bank balances, the Company has no ather finzncal assets which camies any slgnificant credit risk.
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{8) Liquidity risk -

Liguldity risk Is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty i;i-meetlng the abligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settted by
defivering cash ot another financial asset, The Company's approach to managing liquldity Is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficlent liquidity
to meet its liabllities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation. Management monltors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected
cash flows.

(I} Maturities of financlal liabllitles
The following are the remaining contractual maturitles of financlal llablkities at the reporting date. The amaounts are gross and undiscounted, and include
contractual Interest payments,

:;;1:r;:::];:;urlﬁes of financlal Nabilltles 1 year or ess 15 years Msn:;::n Total
Lease Llabilities 4.28 7.18 - 1146
Borrowlngs 65.50 160,00 - 226.50
Trade Payables 47,22 - - 47.22
Other financlal liabilities 38.80 - - 38.80
Total 156,80 167.18 - 323,98
;:::::t:;lg:;uﬂtles of finandlal liabllitles 1.yaar or less 15 vears Msu;:;l::n Total
Lease Liabilities 405 144 - 15,49
Borrowings 203,83 - - 203.83
Trade Payables 10,32 - - .32
Other financlal flabillties . - 20.58 - - 20,58
Total 238.78 1l.44 - 250.22
{C) Market Risk

Market risk Is the risk that changes In market prices — such as forelgn exchange rates, Interest rates and equity prices — wit] affect the Company’s Income or
the value of its Holdings of financial Instruments. The objective of market risk management [s to manage and contral market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.The Company's exposure to, and management of, these risks Is explafned below,

{1} Forelgn currency risk

Forelgn currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will luctuate due to changes In foreign exchange rates. The Company caters mainly
to the Indlan Market , Most of the transactions are denominated In the Company's functional currency i.e. Rupees. Hence the Company Es not materlalty
exposed to Foreign Currency Risk.

(1) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk Is the risk that the falr value or future cashflows of a financlal Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to Interest rate changes at the end of the reporting year are as follows:

teul Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Varlable rate barrowings 44.30 €913
Fixed rate borrowings . 182.20 134.70
Sensitivity:
A change of 100 basls points In Interest rates would have following Impact on profit before tax and equity -

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis polnts 0,33 0,51
Intetest rates — decrease by 100 basls polnts {0.33) {0.51)




Chhabra Healtheare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amaunt In Millions, unless otherwlse stated)

40  Related Party Disclosures
A. Names of related parties and nature of relationship:
Descriptlon of refationshin Name of the related party

Holding Company Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited
Fellow subsldlary companies Atre]a Healthcare Solutlons Private Limited
Avenlr Lifecare Pharma Private Limited
Avenues Pharma Distrlbutors Private Limited
Barros Enterprises Private Limited
Calcutta Mediscluttons Private Limitad
Chethana Healthcare Solutions rivate Limited
Chethana Pharma Distributors Private Umited
Chethana Pharma Private Limited -
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited
City Pharma Distributars Private Limited
CPD Pharma Private Limited
Curever Pharma Private Limited
Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
- Dhanvantharl Super Speciality Private Limited
Entero RS Enterprises Private Limited
G.5.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited
Galaxystar Pharrna Distributors Private Limited
Getwell MedIcare Solutfon Private Umited
Gourav Medical Agencies Private Limlted
Jaget Enterprises Private Limited
Millennlum Med(solutions Private Umited
New RRPD Private Limited
New Slva Agencles Private Limited
Novacare Healthcare Sclutions Private Limited
Peerless Biotech Private Limited
RS M Pharma Private Limited
Rada Medisclutions Private Limited
8.5, Pharma Traders Private Limited
Sal pharma distributors Private Limited
Saurashtra Medisolutions Private Limited
Sesha BalaJee Medisclutions Private Limited
Sree Venkateshwara Medlsolutlons Private Limited
Sri Parshva Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited
Srinlvasa Lifecare Private Limited
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Suprabhat Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
SVYMED Solutions Private Limited
SV5 Lifesciences Private Limited
Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited
Western Healthcare Solutlons Private Limited
Ujjaln Maheshwari Pharma Distributars Prlvate Limited
Quromed Lifesciences Private Limited
Rimedio Pharma Private Limlted
ZENNX SOFTWARE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE EIMITED

Prem Sethi
Kallash sharma
Key Management Abhitesh Kumar
Personnel/Directors Sharad Jaiswal
Anshdeep singh




Chhabra Healthcare Salutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount In Millions, unless otherwise stated)

B. Details of related party transactions:

Nature of Transactlion Name of the related party Far the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Entero Healthcare Solutfons Limited 38.20 19.63
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited - 2,79
Jaggl Enterprises Private Limited 5.63 114
Millennlum Medisclutions Private Limited 21,97 18,33
Barros Enterprises Private Limited - 0.10
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 0.68 0.18
Purchase of stock In trade Rada Medisolutlons Private Limited - 0.14
- Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited 0.03 1.67
Saurashtra Medisolutions Private Limlted - 0.29
R S M Pharma Private Limited 0.24 -
Swaml MedIsolutlons Private Limited D.21 -
Peerless Blotech Private Limited 0.35 -
Vasavi Medicare Solutlons Prlvate Limited - 0.04
Entero Healthcare Solutlons Limited (0.14) 3.61
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited - 3.22
R 3 M Pharma Private Limited - 0.97
Galaxystar Pharma Distributers Private Limited - 232
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited - 3.70
Jaggl Enterprises Private Limited 457 0.87
Vasavi Medicare Solutlons Private Limited - 0.3
Millennium Medlsolutlons Private Limited 0.92 6,29
Sale of stack In trade Rada Medisolutions Private Limlted ©.00 0.38
Chethana Pharma Distributors Private Limited - 0.05
Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited - 0.32
City Pharma Distrlbutors Private Limlted - 0.10
Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limlted - 0.31
Chethana Pharm Pvt Ltd 0.10 -
; Atreja Heslthcare Solutlons Pyt Ltd 0.12 -
Getwell Medicare Sclution Private Umited 0.00 -
Swami Medisolutions Private Limited 3,28 0,23
l Loans Taken [Entero Healthcare Solutlons Limited 67.50 51.00 |
| Loans Repaid |Entero Healthcare Solutlons Limited 20.00 36.24 |
I Interest Expenses [Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 14.37 14.38 |
| corporate Guarantees Taken _{Entero Healthcare Solutions Limlted 100.00 100.00 |
| Salaries and Allowances |Kallash Sharma {Amar Drugs) 0,70 -]
| Cross - Charge® |Entero Healthcare Solutlons Limited 8.44 592 |
* Includes In salary amounting to INR 7,61 Million for the year ended 31st March 2025
C. Details of balances outstanding for related party transactions:
f the refated Asat As at
Nature of Transaction Name of the related party 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
I Loan Taken [Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 182,20 134,70 |
Interest payable Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 25.88 12.95




Chhatbra Healthcare Solutlons Prlvate Limited
Notes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount In Millfans, unless otherwise stated}

Entero Healthcare Solutions Limlted 0.35 0.71
G.S. Pharmaceuticals Distrlbutors Private Limited - 0.06
RS M Pharma Private Limited 0.11 0.11
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited {0.03} {0.03)
Jagel Enterprises Private Limited 3.87 0.84
Vasavl Medicare Solutlons Private Limited 0.06 0.06
Trade Recelvables Svmed Solutions Private Limited ~ 0.03 -
Milleanjum Medisolutions Private Limitad (0.40) 1.66
Calcutta Medisolutlons Private Limited - {0.02)
City Pharma Distributors Private Limited [0.02) {0.02)
Swaml Medisolutions Private Limited {0.24) (0.80)
Atrefa Healthcare Solutlons Pyt Ltd 0.10 -
Entero Healthcare Solutlons Limited 8.64 6.56
Novacare Healthcare Solutlons Private Limited 0.11 {0.11)
G.S, Pharmaceuticals Distrlbutors Private Limited - 0.05
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited {0.03) {0.03}
Jaggl Enterprises Private Limited 4.58 0.93
Millennlum Medisolutions Private Limited 5.12 2,55
Swaml Medisolutions Private Limited 0.23 {0.80)
Trade payables
Galaxystar Pharma Distrlbutors Private Limited {0.00) {0.00}
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited 0.02 {0.02}
Rada Medisolutions Private LUmited - 0.07
Sree Venkateshwara IV edisolutions Private Limlted 0.04 -
RS M Pharma Private Limited 0.27 -
Peerless Blotech Private Limited 0.15 -
Vasavi MedIcare Solutions Private Limited 0.04 0.04
| Corporate Guarantees Taken _[Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 100.00 69.13
| Cross - Charge [Entero Healtheare Salutions Limited 5.40 5.92

D, ey management personnel compensatlon;

particulars For the year ended For the year ended

- 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Director Remuneration: - -
Salaries and Allowances 0,70 -
Relmbursement of Expenses 0.58 -

Key managerlal personnel who are under the employment of the Cempany are entitled to post employment benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19 -
‘Employee Benefits' In the financlal statements. As these employee benefits are amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not
. Included above, Gratulty has been computed for the Company as a whole and hence excluded.

E. The transactlons with related partles are made on terms equlvalent to those that prevall In arm’s length transactions. Qutstanding balances at the
year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs In cash, This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of
the related party and the market In which the related party operates.




Chhabra Healthcare Sclutlons Private Umited
Naotes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount In Millions, unless otherwise stated})

a1 Disclosure related to Leases
Company as Lessea

{A) Carrying value of rlght of use assets at the end of the reporting year

Partlculars As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balance at the beglnning of the yeary 8.59 10.9%

Additions - -

Depreciation charge for the year {2.40) {2.40)

Balance at the end of the year . - 6.19 8.59
{B) Change In carrylng value of lease liabllitles at the end of the reporting year

Balance at the beglnning of the year 13.01 15,49

Additions - -

Payment of lzase liabllities {4,06) {3.86)

Finance cost during the year 112 1.38

Balance at the end of the year 10.07 13,01
(€} Maturlty analysls of lease |lahilitias

Less than one year 4,28 4.05

Oneto five years 7.18 11.44

More than five years - -

Total tndiscounted lease llabilltles at reporting year 1146 15,49

Lease llabllittes Included In the statement of financtal positlon at the year end 10.07 13.01
{D) Amounts recognlsed In statement of proflt or loss

interest on lease liabilities 1,12 138

Depreciation of right of use assets 2.40 240
(E} Amounts recognised In the statement of cash Nlows

Total cash outflow for leases 4.06 3,86

a4z Statement of unhedped forelgn currency exposures
‘The Company has na foreign currency exposures,

43 Impalrment testing of Goodwill
Goodwill Is tested for Impairment annually on 31 March every year. Company operates In single segment/ CGU.

The recoverable amount of & CGU |s based on higher of falr value less costs to sell and vatue In use. Falr value 1s the price that would be racejved
to sell an asset or pald to transfer a llability In an orderly transaction between market participant at measurement date, Value in use i present
value of future cash flow expected to be derived from an assets {CGU). The value In use Is estimated using discounted cash flows over a year of 5
years and Cash flows beyond 5 years Is estimated by capitalising the future maintainable cash flows by an appropriate capitalisation rate and then
discounted using appropriate discount rate. This fair value measurement was categorlsed as a Level 3 falr value based on Inputs In the valuation
technlque used,

Cperating margins and growth rates for the flve year cash flow projections have been estimated based on past experience and after considering
the financial budgets/forecasts provided by the munagement. Other key assumptions vsed In the estimatfon of the recoverable amount are set
out below. The values asslgned to the key assumptions represent management's assessment of future trends In the relevant industry and have
been based on historical data from both external and Internal sources.

As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 14.17% -
Tetminal value growth rate 5,00% -
10.00% -

Revenue growth rate

With regard to assessment of recoverable amount, no reasonalably possible change In any of the above key assumptions would cost the carrying
amount of the CGU's to exceed thelr recoverable amount,

The Company has also performed sensitivity analysls ealculations onthe projections used and discount rate applled. Company has concluded that,




Chhabra Healthcare Solutlons Private Limited
Nates forming part of the Financial Statemants for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount In Millions, unless otherwise stated)

a4
a

Acquisition Of Chhabra Healtheare Sclutions Private Limited

On 2 September 2024, Chhabra Healtheare Solutions Private Uimited (*Chhabra™, & wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company
campleted tha acquisition of Amar Drugs Distibutors a partnership firm under slump sale transaction. The deal envisaged the acquisition
of the business for 2 total cash consideration of Rs. 22,63 milllon. The transactlon Is accounted as per acquisition method of business
comblnation under Ind AS 103,

The acquisition is in line with the Company's strategy td-expand Its business in the state of Uttar Pradesh.

Purchase canslderation transferred:
Partleufars Amount
Lump sum consideration {including contingent consideration) 22.63

Assats acquired and llabllitles assumed:

Partfculars Amount

Property, Plant and Equipment 0.20
Inventorles 10.23
Trade Recelvables 12.05
Other Current Liabilities {2.23)
Trade and other Payable (9.85)
Total Identifiable net assets 10.40

Amount recognized as goodwitl:
Particulars Amount

Falr value of consideration transferred 22,63
Less: Falr value of the net assets acquired {10.40)

Goodwill 12.23

Acquired recalvables:
As on the date of acquisition, gross cantractual amount of the acquired Trade and other Recelvables was Rs, 12.06 millien against which no
provision had been considerad since falr value of the acquired recelvables were equal to carrying value as on the date af acqulsition.




Chhabra Healthcare Sclutions Private Umlted
Netes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount [n Milllens, ualess otherwlse stated}

45 Ratic Analysts

% change from
Particulars Numerator Denominator 31 March 2025 31March 2024 21 March 2025 to 31 March |Reason for varlance
2024
Due to rectassification of
a) Current Ratlo - Current Assets Current Uabllities borrawing nte current and
non eurrgnt [n the current
145 0.80 82.69 %{year.
Dte to Increase In losses
Short term and lang term during the current yoar
b} Deb?- Ratli Equt
{6} Debt-Equity Ratlo borrowings Totak Equity despite anly marginal
(2,95} 1B.25 {116.18)%|Increase in barowing.
Due to decrease In earning
Earning b
(c} Debt Service Covarage Ratio T:;" ng befors Interest and Dabt Service bafore interest and tax during
- {0.21) {0113 81,23 | the current year.
{d] Return an Equity Ratlo Net Profit After Tax Averge sharehalder's Due to increase In tasses
equity 0.10 015 (35,535 [during the current year.
(&) Inventory turnover ratfo Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 2.45 2,11 16.55 % -
{f) Trade Recelvables turnover ratla | Net credit sales Average Trade recelvables 130 134 [2.56% .
(g) Trade payables turnover ratlo Cradit purchasas Avarage Trade payabla 5.20 B.83 141.11)% | Due to Increase In puchases
Cue to Increase In sale and
| {Cu
{h} Net capita] turmovar ratlo Salos Worldng Caplial [Curren working capltal during tha
Assats-Current Babiitles)
9.05 {11.77) (176.84]% [eurreny year
{i} Net profit ratle Net profit after tax tat Sales " {0.04} {004} (5.771% .
Oue to nagative EBIT in the
Earning before Interest and current year led to 2 sharp
() Raturn on Capital employed rax Avarage Caplllal Employed | decline in ROCE compared ta
[0.00) 0.00 [201.45)% | last year,
{h} Return on Investmant NA
a5 Reconclifation of quartery retums ar statements flled with banks or financlal lnstitutions
Amount as per books of Amaunt as reported In the,
Quarter Name of Bank Particulars a:czunt guartery return/ Dltferance Reasan for discrepancias
statement
Inventory 58,04 58.04 0,00
Reclasification & half yearly
Jun 24 Industad Barik Croditors 17.12 27.47 {10.35) closing sdustments
Debtors 125.76 132,08 {6.32)
ndusind Bank tnventary a7 74.97 0.00)| o etasification & half yearly
Sep 24 ndusind Ban! Creditors 35.88 44.86 {8.55) ¢losing adjustments
Cebtors 141.54, 154,72 13.18}
Inventory 71.68 71,88 {0.00)
Reclasification & year end
Dec24 tndusind Bank Creditars 4374 42,67 107 v
zlosing ad)ustmants
Dabtors 157.66 154.40 3.26
nd Bank Inventory £0.54 58,75 218} g oclasification & yearend
Mar2s Indusind Ban Craditors 47.22 55.91 B8N ioging adjustments
Dabtors 142,87 161.65 (18,78}




Chhabra Healtheare Solutions Private Umited
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{Amount in MiMTons, unless otherwise stated)
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49

Other Statutory Informatfon:

{1} Detalls of benaml property held
The Campany does not have any Bonami property, whore any pr JIng has bean inltiated or panding agalnst the Company for holding any Benaml property.
{11} Relatfonships with struck off companies
The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off,
{lith Reglstration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Compantes
‘The Company do not hiava any <harges or satlsfaction which Is yzt to ba raglstered with ROC beyond the statutory peried,
{iv] Detalls of crypto currency or virtual currancy
The Company have nat traded or [pvastad in Crypto currancy ar Virtual Currancy during the financial yaar.
{v) Utllisation of borrowlngs avalled fram banks and finantlal Institutlons
The Campany have not advanced or extended foan or Invested funds to any ather personls) ar entitylles), Including forefga entitles (Intermediaries) with the understand!ing that the tntermadiary shall;
{a} directly or indlrectly land or invest In other parsons or entitfos [dentiffed In any mannar whatseaver by oron bahalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficladas) or
{b} provide any guarantee, security or the [ike to o on bohalf of the Ultimate Benefictaries,
{vl) Undisclesed Income
The Company toes not hava any undis¢lesed Income which is not rocorded In the books of account that has bean surrandered or disclosed as income during the year {previous year) in the tax atsessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

{vif} The Indfan Parllament kas approved the Code on Soclal Sscurity, 2020 which would impact the contributians by the company towarss Provident Fund and Gratulty. The Ministry of Labour and Employment
has released draft rules for theCoda on Soclal Securlty, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggostions from stakeholders which are undarastiva consideration by the Ministry, The Greup will assess
tha impact and Its ovaluation once the subjact rules are notiffed and wiil give approprlato Impact In {ts finanela) statarents In the year In which, the Coda bacemes effective znd tharelated rutas to determine
the financlal Impact are publlshcd_.

{witi) Wikulk defaulter
The Company hias not been declared wilful defaultar by any bank or finapeial institution or by any gavarnmant authoritles.
{tx) Campliance with number of layers of companies
Tha company has compliod with the number of layers prescribed under clousa (87) of section 2 of the Act rosd with the Companles (Restrictlon on numbar of Layers] Rules, 2017,

{¥) Compllante with approved schemels) of arrangements
The company has not entered Into any schema of arrangament which has an decounting Impact on current ar previous flnanclal year,

{xi) Ttle deeds of immovable properties
The title deeds of all the immovable prepertles {other than propertles whers the company Is the [=ssee and the lease arrangements are duly exeguted n favour of the lessee) are held In the name af the
Company durlng the currant and previous year,
(xii} Valuatlen of PPE, Intanglble assets and Investment propesty
The company fias not revalued [ts property, plant and equfomant [Including Right of use assets) or Intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.
[selTE} Audit Trail

The Minkstry of Corporate Affales {MCA) has prascribed a naw requirernent for companles undar the proviso to Rule 3{1) of tho Companles {Accounts) Rules, 2014 Inserted by the Companles {Accounts)
Amendmant Rules 2021 requlrng compantes, which uses accounting software for malntalning Tts books of accounts, shall use only such accounting saffware whieh has a faature of recording audIt trall of gach
and every transaction, creating an edlt log of each change made In the books of accounts along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that tha audlt trail cannot be disabled.

Company has used a softwara appiication for ravante, billing and recelvablas, purchases and payablas and Inventory managament during the year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recording audit
trall {edit log) Facility elther at application level or at database [evel,

(xIv} Backup of books of accounts

Tho company uses software / [T applications to malntaln fts books of accounts and othar books and paparsin oh moda ("El {c racards"}. Ducing the year, the Company has maintaned backups of
thess electronic records on server physlcally located in India on dally basfs, as requfred by Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014{as smended),

The financl2) statement were autharised for Issua by the company's board of directors on May 24, 2025,

Pravious reporting year flgures have been regrouped/ reclassifled, where necessary, to canfarm to this reporting year's classiication.
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